BYLAWS

WEST BOCA RATON SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION, INC.

Updated as of August 8, 2013



BYLAWS WEST BOCA RATON SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION, INC. Updated as of August 8, 2013



Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1 Name, Seal, and Offices		
1.1.	Name	4
1.2.	Seal	4
1.3.	Offices	4
ARTICI	LE 2 Guiding Principles	4
2.1.	Purpose	4
2.2.	Benefit to Public	4
ARTICI	LE 3 Members	4
ARTICI	ARTICLE 4 Directors	
4.1.	Generally	4
4.2.	Number and Qualification	4
4.3.	Election of Directors; Term of Office.	5
4.4.	Resignation	5
4.5.	Removal	5
4.6.	Vacancies	5
4.7.	Annual Meetings	5
4.8.	Regular and Special Meetings	6
4.9.	Notice of Meetings	
4.10.	Method of Giving Notice	
4.11.	Quorum	
4.12.	Electronic Presence at a Meeting	6
4.13.	Compensation	
4.14.	Action Without Meeting	
ARTICI	ARTICLE 5 Officers.	
5.1.	Number and Titles	7
5.2.	Election, Term of Office, and Qualifications	7
5.3.	Vacancies	
5.4.	President	7
5.5.	Vice Presidents	7
5.6.	Secretary	8
5.7.	Treasurer	8
5.8.	Removal	8
ARTICI	LE 6 Committees	9
6.1.	Committees of the Board of Directors	9
6.2.	Advisory Committees	9
6.3.	Terms of Office	9
6.4.	Chairperson	9
6.5.	Vacancies	9
6.6.	Voting and Quorum	9
6.7.	Rules1	
6.8.	Compensation1	0



BYLAWS WEST BOCA RATON SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION, INC. Updated as of August 8, 2013

Updated as of August 8, 2013



ARTICLE 1 Name, Seal, and Offices

1.1. <u>Name</u>. The name of this corporation is WEST BOCA RATON SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION, INC. (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation").

1.2. <u>Seal</u>. The seal of the Corporation shall be circular in form and shall bear on its outer edge the words "West Boca Raton Softball Association, Inc." and in the center the words and figures "Corporation Not for Profit 1997 Florida." The Board of Directors may change the form of the seal or the inscription thereon at its pleasure.

1.3. <u>Offices</u>. The registered office of the Corporation shall be at such location in the State of Florida as may be appointed by the Board of Directors. The Corporation also may have offices at such other places as the Board of Directors from time to time may appoint or the purposes of the Corporation may require.

ARTICLE 2 Guiding Principles

2.1. <u>**Purpose.**</u> The Corporation exists and operates for the purposes described in its Articles of Incorporation.

2.2. <u>Benefit to Public</u>. The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall ensure, to the greatest extent possible, that funds expended by the Corporation directly benefit the public and are employed directly in activities contemplated by the purposes of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 3 Members

The Corporation shall not have members.

ARTICLE 4 Directors

4.1. <u>Generally</u>. All power and authority of the Corporation shall be vested exclusively in the Board of Directors, which shall manage and direct the affairs of the Corporation. The members of the Board of Directors shall be referred to as "directors". The Board of Directors, by general resolution, may delegate to committees or to officers of the Corporation such powers as it may see fit.

4.2. <u>Number and Qualification</u>. The number of directors of the Corporation shall be determined and may be increased or decreased from time to time by the Board of Directors, but in no event, shall there be fewer than five directors or more than eleven directors. When the number of directors is decreased, each director in office shall continue to serve until his or her

Updated as of August 8, 2013



term expires, or until his or her resignation or removal. Directors shall be of legal age and need not be residents of the State of Florida.

4.3. <u>Election of Directors; Term of Office.</u>

(a) Directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the Board of Directors. All directors shall hold office until (i) the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and, in the case of directors whose successors are to be elected; their successors are elected and take office or (ii) their earlier resignation or removal.

(b) All elected directors shall be elected as a group. All candidates for elected positions on the Board of Directors shall be voted upon in a single ballot, and all members of the outgoing Board of Directors who participate in the election shall be required to vote for as many different candidates as the number of elected director positions to be filled in such election. There shall be no cumulative voting. The candidates, equal in number to the number of positions to be filled, who receive the largest number of votes in such single ballot, shall be elected.

(c) There shall be no limit on the number of terms each director may serve on the Board of Directors. Any director may nominate and vote for himself or herself for reelection.

4.4. <u>**Resignation**</u>. Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Board of Directors.

4.5. <u>**Removal.</u>** Any director may be removed from office for any reason by the affirmative vote of a majority of all the votes that all directors then in office are entitled to cast at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose. Any director proposed to be removed shall be entitled to at least five days' notice in writing, by any method described in Section 4.10. hereof, of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which such removal is to be voted upon and shall be entitled to appear before and be heard by the Board of Directors at such meeting. The presence or absence of the director proposed to be removed shall not be taken into account for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present, and such director shall not be entitled to cast a vote on the question of his or her removal from office.</u>

4.6. <u>Vacancies</u>. Any vacancy in the Board of Directors occurring during any term of office, including a vacancy created by an increase in the number of directors made by the Board of Directors, may be filled as provided in Section 4.11. hereof for the unexpired portion of the term by the directors then serving. Any director so elected by the Board of Directors shall hold office until the succeeding annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

4.7. <u>Annual Meetings</u>. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held each year on the last Tuesday of August at a location to be announced or at such other location

Updated as of August 8, 2013



and/or date and/or time as may be fixed by the Board of Directors, for the purpose of election of directors, organization, election of officers, and the transaction of other business.

4.8. <u>Regular and Special Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such times and place or places as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President as he or she sees fit and must be called by the President upon the written request of any two members of the Board of Directors. Except as otherwise required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any business may be transacted at any directors' meeting.

4.9. <u>Notice of Meetings</u>. Notice of the time, place and purposes of the annual meeting shall be given to each director not less than 10 nor more than 30 days before the date thereof. Notice of all special meetings of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided, shall be given to each director not less than 5 nor more than 30 days before the date thereof. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors, held pursuant to a schedule previously adopted by the Board of Directors and made known to all directors, may be held without additional notice. Notice of any meeting may be waived by any director. At any meeting at which every director shall be present, even though without any notice or waiver, any business may be transacted.

4.10. <u>Method of Giving Notice</u>. Notices shall be deemed given by electronic mail, telephone, or facsimile.

4.11. <u>**Quorum</u>**. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the presence of directors entitled to cast a majority of all votes that can be cast by all of the directors (including vacant director positions) shall be sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The presence of directors entitled to cast a majority of all votes that can be cast by all of the directors then in office (even if less than a majority of all votes if all director positions were filled) shall be sufficient to constitute a quorum for the sole purpose of filling vacant seats on the Board of Directors or vacant offices of the Corporation. The act of directors casting a majority of the votes cast by directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise specifically may be provided by statute, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation or these Bylaws. If at any meeting there is less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting without further notice to any absent director.</u>

4.12. <u>Electronic Presence at a Meeting</u>. Any or all directors may participate in any annual, regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors by, or conduct the meeting through the use of, any means of communication by which all directors participating may hear each other simultaneously during the meeting. A director participating in a meeting by this means shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting.

4.13. <u>**Compensation**</u>. Directors shall not receive any stated salary for their services. The Board of Directors shall have power in its discretion to contract for and to pay to directors rendering unusual or exceptional services to the Corporation special compensation appropriate to

Updated as of August 8, 2013



the value of such services. Payments to directors under this Section 4.13., if not excessive, shall not be deemed to violate the prohibition set forth in Subsection 12.2(a) hereof; however, the restrictions set forth in Subsection 12.2(c) hereof shall apply to any determination by the Board of Directors as to the making of such payments.

4.14. <u>Action Without Meeting</u>. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, may be taken without a meeting or notice if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the members of the Board of Directors, and such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote at a meeting. Action taken under this Section is effective when the last director signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A consent signed under this Section 4.14. shall have the effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document.

ARTICLE 5 Officers

5.1. <u>Number and Titles</u>. The officers of the Corporation shall be the President, Secretary, Treasurer and such other officers, including any number of Vice Presidents, with such titles, powers and duties not inconsistent with these Bylaws as may be appointed and determined by the Board of Directors. Any combination of offices may be held by the same person, except that the President shall not hold any office that has the title of Vice President.

5.2. <u>Election, Term of Office, and Qualifications</u>. The officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Nominations of qualified candidates, whether currently serving as officers, or volunteers from outside the Board, will be made by the current Board of Directors prior to the annual meeting. The President shall be elected from among the members of the Board of Directors, and all other officers shall be elected from among the members of the Board of Directors or such other persons as the Board of Directors may see fit.

5.3. <u>Vacancies</u>. In the event that any office of the Corporation shall become vacant by death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, or any other cause, the majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, may elect an officer to fill such vacancy, and the officer so elected shall hold office and serve until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

5.4. <u>President</u>. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. He or she shall have general charge and supervision of the business and affairs of the Corporation, subject to the direction of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

5.5. <u>Vice Presidents</u>. At the request of the President, or in the event of his or her absence or disability, any Vice President, if any shall then be in office, shall perform the duties



Updated as of August 8, 2013

and possess the powers of the President; and to the extent authorized by law, each Vice President, if any shall then be in office, shall have such other powers as the Board of Directors may determine, and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

5.6. <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall have charge of books, documents, and papers as the Board of Directors may determine and shall have the custody of the corporate seal. He or she shall attend, or cause to be attended, and keep, or cause to be kept, the minutes of all the meetings of the Board of Directors and committees having the delegated authority of the Board of Directors, and he or she shall be responsible for the Corporation's compliance with all requirements under Section 8.1. of these Bylaws relating to such minutes. He or she may sign with the President or an authorized Vice President, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, any contracts or agreements authorized by the Board of Directors, and when so authorized or ordered by the Board of Directors, he or she may affix the seal of the Corporation. He or she shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary, subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

5.7. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody of all funds, property, and securities of the Corporation, subject to such regulations as may be imposed by the Board of Directors. He or she may be required to give bond for the faithful performance of his or her duties, in such sum and with such sureties as the Board of Directors may require. He or she shall be responsible for managing the funds of the Corporation and for creating and managing a yearly budget for the Corporation. He or she may endorse on behalf of the Corporation for collection checks, notes, and other obligations, and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation at such banks or depositories as the Board of Directors may designate. He or she shall sign all receipts and vouchers. He or she shall make such payments as may be necessary on behalf of the Corporation. He or she shall enter regularly on the books of the Corporation to be kept by him or her for that purpose full and accurate account of all moneys and obligations received and paid or incurred by him or her for or on account of the Corporation. He or she shall be responsible for the Corporation's compliance with all requirements under Section 8.1. of these Bylaws relating to such books and records of account. He or she shall exhibit such books at all reasonable times to any director on application at the offices of the Corporation, and he or she shall submit the books and records of the Corporation for annual review by the Board of Directors. He or she shall perform, in general, all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer, subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

5.8. <u>**Removal.**</u> Any officer may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of directors entitled to cast a majority of all of the votes that may be cast at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose, with or without cause. Any officer proposed to be removed shall be entitled to at least five days' notice in writing, by any method described in Section 4.10. hereof, of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which such removal is to be voted upon and shall be entitled to appear before and be heard by the Board of Directors at such meeting. If the

Updated as of August 8, 2013



officer proposed to be removed is also a director, then the presence or absence of such director shall not be taken into account for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present, and such director shall not be entitled to cast a vote on the question of his or her removal from office.

ARTICLE 6 Committees

6.1. <u>Committees of the Board of Directors</u>. By resolution duly adopted, the Board of Directors may establish one or more committees of the Board of Directors, each of which shall consist of two or more directors. To the extent provided by such resolution, such committees shall have and may exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation; provided, however, that the designation of such committees and delegations of authority thereto shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any director individually, of any responsibility imposed upon it, him or her by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. Any member of any such committee may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, the interests of the Corporation would be served best by such removal.

6.2. <u>Advisory Committees</u>. Advisory committees not having and exercising the managerial authority of the Board of Directors may be established by resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors. Membership of such committees shall not be limited to directors of the Corporation. Except as otherwise may be provided by resolution, members of such committees shall be selected by appointment of the President. Any member of any such committee may be removed by the person or persons authorized to appoint such member whenever, in the judgment of such appointing person or persons, the interests of the Corporation would be served best by such removal.

6.3. <u>**Terms of Office**</u>. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors or until his or her successor is appointed, unless such committee shall be abolished sooner or unless such committee member shall resign, be removed, or cease to qualify as a member thereof.

6.4. <u>Chairperson</u>. One member of each committee shall be designated as chairperson by the person or persons authorized to appoint the members of the committee (subject to Section 6.1. hereof).

6.5. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of original appointments, and any member so elected shall be elected for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor.

6.6. <u>Voting and Quorum</u>. Each member of each committee shall have the right to cast one (1) vote upon all matters voted upon by the committee. The presence of members of a committee having the power to cast a majority of the votes that can be cast by the whole committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act of the members of the committee having the

Updated as of August 8, 2013



power to cast a majority of the votes that can be cast by all of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be an act of the committee.

6.7. <u>Rules</u>. Each committee may adopt such rules and regulations for its meetings and the conduct of its activities as it may deem appropriate; provided, however, that such rules and regulations shall be consistent with these Bylaws. The rules set forth in Section 4.12. of these Bylaws, regarding electronic presence at meetings of the Board of Directors shall be applicable to committees of the Board of Directors.

6.8. <u>Compensation</u>. The members of any committee shall not receive any salary for their services. The Board of Directors shall have power in its discretion to contract for and to pay to any member of a committee rendering unusual or exceptional services to the Corporation special compensation appropriate to the value of such services. Payments to members of committees under this Section 6.8., if not excessive, shall not be deemed to violate the prohibition set forth in Subsection 12.2(a) hereof; however, the restrictions set forth in Section 12.2(c) hereof shall apply to any determination by the Board of Directors as to the making of such payments.

ARTICLE 7 Agents and Representatives

The Board of Directors may appoint agents and representatives of the Corporation with powers and to perform acts or duties on behalf of the Corporation as the Board of Directors may see fit, so far as may be consistent with these Bylaws, to the extent authorized by law.

ARTICLE 8 Coaches' Background Check Policy/Disqualifying Offenses

A volunteer applicant will be disqualified and prohibited from serving as a volunteer if the applicant has been found guilty of the following crimes within the time frames stated:

SEX OFFENSES

All Sex offenses regardless of the amount of time since offense or level of offense. Examples: child molestation, rape, sexual assault, sexual battery, sodomy, prostitution, solicitation, indecent exposure, etc.

FELONIES

All Felony Violence offenses regardless of the amount of time since offense. Examples: murder, manslaughter, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, aggravated burglary.

All Felony offenses other than sex or violence within the past 10 years. Examples: drug offenses, theft, embezzlement, fraud, child endangerment, etc.

Updated as of August 8, 2013



MISDEMEANORS

All Misdemeanor Violence offenses within the past 7 years. Examples: simple assault, battery, domestic violence, hit & run.

All Misdemeanor Drug offenses within the past 3 years or multiple offenses in the past 7 years.

Multiple DUI convictions, within the past 3 years.

Any other misdemeanor offenses within the past 5 years that would be considered a potential danger to children or is directly related to the functions of that volunteer position.

Examples: contributing to the delinquency of a minor; providing alcohol to a minor; theft – if the person is handling money

PENDING CASES

Volunteer applicants will not be permitted to volunteer or continue to volunteer until there is official adjudication of pending disqualifying offense charges or case. Eligibility will be determined by the above criteria.

For purposes of the crimes listed above, guilty means that a person was found guilty following a trial, entered a guilty plea, entered a no contest plea accompanied by a court finding of guilty, regardless of whether there was an adjudication of guilt (conviction) or a withholding of guilt. This does not apply if the criminal charges resulted in acquittal, Nolle Prosse, or dismissal.

ARTICLE 9 Concussion Policy and Head Injury Policy

The Corporation will follow the guidelines of FL State Statute 943.0438 as it relates to Concussion and Head Injuries.

- The Corporation will educate athletic coaches, officials, administrators, and youth athletes and their parents or guardians of the nature and risk of concussion and head injury and be required to complete the CDC's Online Concussion Training for Coaches Course at <u>http://www.cdc.gov/concussion/HeadsUp/online_training.html</u> and submit the certificate of completion to the Corporation to document the successful completion of training.
- The Corporation will require the parent or guardian of a youth who is participating in athletic competition, or who is a candidate for an athletic team, to sign and return an informed Consent that explains the nature and risk of concussion and head injury, including the risk of continuing to play after concussion or head injury, each year before participating in athletic competition or engaging in any practice, tryout, workout, or other

Updated as of August 8, 2013



physical activity associated with the youth's candidacy for an athletic team. They will receive educational material and reference websites to further their education about the risks involved with concussion and head injuries and playing with a head injury.

The WBRSA youth athlete who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury in a practice or competition will be immediately removed from the activity. A youth athlete who has been removed from an activity may not return to practice or competition until the youth submits to the athletic coach a written medical clearance to return, stating that the youth athlete no longer exhibits signs, symptoms or behaviors consistent with a concussion or other head injury. Medical clearance must be authorized by the appropriate health care practitioner trained in the diagnosis, evaluation and management of concussions as defined by the *Sports Medicine Advisory Committee of Florida High School Athletic Association* (www.fhsaa.org). The parents, players and coaches will be educated about needing a medical note to have the youth athlete return to the sport once a suspected, or sustained, concussion or head injury has occurred.

ARTICLE 10 Books, Records and Reports

10.1. <u>Books and Records</u>. In compliance with Section 617.1601 of Florida Statutes, as amended, or any successor thereto, the Corporation shall keep as permanent records correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors. All books and records of the corporation shall be kept in written form or in another form capable of conversion into written form within a reasonable time.

10.2. <u>Annual Reports</u>. The Corporation shall file with the Department of State of the State of Florida, on or after January 1 and on or before May 1 of each year, a sworn annual report on such forms and containing such information as the Department of State may prescribe.

ARTICLE 11 Contracts, Deposits, Checks and Contributions

11.1. <u>Contracts</u>. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors may authorize any officer or agent to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to a specific instance. Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, employee, agent or representative shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or render it liable pecuniarily for any purpose or to any amount.

11.2. <u>Deposits</u>. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories or, pursuant to

Updated as of August 8, 2013



Article 13 hereof, invested from time to time for and on behalf of the Corporation, as the Board of Directors may elect.

11.3. <u>Checks, Drafts, Orders for Payment</u>. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as the Board of Directors from time to time shall determine by resolution. In the absence of such determination, such instruments shall require the signatures of any one of the following: the President, the Treasurer, or any of the Vice Presidents of the Corporation.

11.4. <u>Contributions</u>. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise of any property whatsoever, for the purposes of the Corporation (subject to Section 13.2. hereof).

ARTICLE 12 Voting Upon Shares of Other Corporations

Unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors, the President shall have full power and authority on behalf of the Corporation to vote either in person or by proxy at any meeting of shareholders of any corporation in which this Corporation may hold shares, and at any such meeting may possess and exercise all of the rights and powers incident to the ownership of such shares that, as the owner, this Corporation might have possessed and exercised if present. The Board of Directors may confer like powers upon any other person and may revoke any such powers as granted at its pleasure.

ARTICLE 13 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on January 1 of each year and end on December 31.

ARTICLE 14 Prohibited Acts

14.1. <u>Sharing in Corporate Earnings</u>. No director, officer, employee, agent, representative or member of a committee of or person connected with the Corporation, or any other private individual shall receive at any time any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the Corporation, provided that this shall not prevent the payment (subject to Section 12.2. hereof) to any such person of such reasonable compensation as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors for services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting any of its purposes; and no such person or persons shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets upon the dissolution of the Corporation.



Updated as of August 8, 2013

14.2. Self-Dealing.

(a) No disqualified person (as defined in Subsection (b) of this Section 12.2) shall enter into or be interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, contract or business relationship with the Corporation or relating or incidental to operations of the Corporation, nor shall any disqualified person receive from or contribute to the Corporation, directly or indirectly, any goods, services, facilities, compensation, expenses, funds or other property unless such transaction, contract, business relationship, receipt or contribution shall be excluded from the definition of "self-dealing" set forth in Section 4941(d) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations, as they now exist or as they may be amended.

(b) For purposes of this Section 12.2., the term "disqualified person" shall mean any (i) director, officer or manager of the Corporation, (ii) substantial contributor to the Corporation (as defined in Section 507(d)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations, as they now exist or as they may be amended), (iii) spouse, lineal ancestor, lineal descendant or spouse of a lineal descendant of any person described in item (i) or (ii) of this sentence, (iv) owner of a twenty percent (20%) or greater interest in any substantial contributor to the Corporation, or (v) corporation, partnership or trust or estate in which the persons described in items (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this sentence in the aggregate have greater than a thirty-five percent (35%) voting, ownership or beneficial interest.

(c) Any contract, transaction, or act on behalf of the Corporation in a matter in which any one or more directors or officers is interested personally, if not prohibited by Subsection (a) of this Section 12.2, shall be at arm's length and not violative of the proscriptions in the Articles of Incorporation against the Corporation's use or application of its funds for private benefit; no contract, transaction, or act shall be entered into on behalf of the Corporation that would result in the denial of the tax exemption under any Section of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may be amended, including without limitation Sections 501 and 507 thereof; and no contract, transaction or other act described in Section 617.0832 of Florida Statutes, as amended, or any successor thereto, shall be entered into by the Corporation unless such contract, transaction or other act is characterized under said statute as being not void or voidable. In no event, however, shall any person or other entity dealing with the directors or officers of the Corporation be obligated to inquire into the authority of the directors and officers to enter into and consummate any contract, transaction, or other action.

ARTICLE 15 Investments

15.1. <u>Management of Investments</u>. Funds, securities and other property of the Corporation may be invested and reinvested under the direct management of the Board of Directors, such officers of the Corporation as may be designated by the Board of Directors, or such investment managers and/or brokers as the Board of Directors, in the exercise of its



Updated as of August 8, 2013

judgment, may engage for such purpose. The Board of Directors may authorize any such investment manager or broker engaged by the Board of Directors for such purpose to exercise such discretion as the Board of Directors shall determine, in the exercise of its judgment, to be in the best interests of the Corporation; provided, however, that in all such instances, the Board of Directors clearly and specifically shall instruct such investment manager or broker as to the extent and limitations of the discretion so authorized and shall require such investment manager or broker to make regular reports to the Board of Directors as to its investment policies, transactions on behalf of the Corporation and the results thereof.

15.2. <u>Permissible Investments</u>. The Corporation shall have the right to retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by it in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by it, according to the judgment of the Board of Directors, without being restricted to the class of investments that a director is or may be permitted by law to make or any similar restriction; provided, however, that (i) no action shall be taken by or on behalf of the Corporation if such action would result in the denial of the tax exemption under any Section or sections of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may be amended, including without limitation Sections 501 and 507, and (ii) the Corporation 4943 of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations, as they now exist or as they may be amended, or that jeopardize or may be deemed to jeopardize the carrying out of any of the Corporation's exempt purposes, as set forth in Section 4944 of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations, as they now exist or as they may be amended.

ARTICLE 16 Exempt Activities

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, no director, officer, employee, agent or representative of this Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity by or on behalf of the Corporation not permitted to be taken or carried on by an organization exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may be amended, or by an organization contributions to which are deductible under Sections 170(c)(2), 2055, 2106(a)(2) and 2522 of such Code and Regulations as they now exist or as they may be amended.

ARTICLE 17 Indemnification

The Corporation shall indemnify and advance expenses on behalf of its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted under Section 617.0831 of Florida Statutes, as amended, or any successor thereto. Said indemnification shall extend to any and all liabilities of the directors and officers arising from their relationships with the Corporation in any and all capacities. By resolution duly adopted, the Board of Directors may authorize the corporation to (i) indemnify any or all of its employees and agents who are not directors to any extent that the

BYLAWS

WEST BOCA RATON SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION, INC.

Updated as of August 8, 2013



Board of Directors may determine, up to and including the fullest extent permitted under Section 617.0831 of Florida Statutes, as amended, or any successor thereto, and/or (ii) provide insurance coverage to any or all of its directors, officers, employees and agents against any or all risks or liabilities that such persons may incur by virtue of their relationships with the Corporation.

ARTICLE 18 Parliamentary Authority

<u>Robert's Rules of Order</u> shall be the governing authority for conduct of all meetings of the Board of Directors and all committees, except where inconsistent with law, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or the rules adopted by any such committee for the conduct of its meetings.

ARTICLE 19 Amendments

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed, or new bylaws may be adopted, only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present.

I CERTIFY that the foregoing Bylaws were adopted by the Board of Directors by Written Consent dated as of August 8, 2013, and remain in full force and effect.

Chris Polimeni) Treasurer